Oswestry Rural Parish Council

Minutes

of a virtual Parish Council meeting held at 7 pm on Tuesday 30 March 2021 by Zoom online video

Present:

Chairman: Cllr. Peter Richardson, Cllr. Janet Barlow, Cllr. Pam Broomby, Cllr. John Davies, Cllr. Peter Davies, Cllr. Martin Jones, Cllr. Les Maguire, Cllr. Claire Mahoney, Cllr. Phil May, Cllr. Paul Milner, Cllr Tony Milner, Cllr. Elliot Roberts Jones, Cllr. Tracy Rowe.

Clerk to the Council:

Sharon Clayton

In attendance:

Approximately 22 members of the public.

Shropshire Councillor Joyce Barrow.

Inspector Claire Greenaway, Oswestry Rural South Safer Neighbourhood Team.

964 Chairman's Welcome

The chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting.

965 Apologies for Absence

Apologies were received from Cllr. Robert Milton who had a work commitment and Cllr. Bob Kimber who was not well

These apologies were accepted and AGREED as APPROVED absence.

966 Police Report

Inspector Claire Greenaway gave the following verbal report:

There were no crime reports other than speeding and a few calls about horses straying from fields. The police have launched a Community Charter, which is a service level agreement between the police and the community. It would be available for consultation soon. It is the first of its kind and will create a positive step forward for healthy engagement.

Claire was informed of a shooting incident in Nantmawr which had left the glass in the telephone kiosk with a hole in it. Claire said this had not been reported.

Due to the forthcoming local elections in May the Police and Crime Commissioner was in purdah and the police were not currently engaged with him. It was hoped that the Charter, which was the work of West Mercia Police, would encourage people to liaise more with the police.

When asked whether a dog walker approached by someone with a knife was an isolated case Claire said there had been 3 incidents in the past and the current incident was still under investigation. However, it had not been confirmed whether it was a knife crime.

When informed of another alleged knife crime reported on social media Claire said she was not aware of this incident.

Claire said that 40 sheep had been killed by dogs last year and this was of concern. There had been a recent incident and it would be dealt with as a criminal offence.

NOTED.

967 Public Participation

One member of the public thanked the Council for its good work this year especially during the pandemic. He then outlined local concern about the Chapel Lane development proposals and implored the Council to object.

The Chairman of TRPG spoke on their behalf, with reference to the Chapel Lane development proposals. He said the Group believed the proposals did not meet the Local Plan SAMDev, nor comply with the draft presubmission Local Plan in terms of scale and truly affordable housing, neither do they reflect the results from the Parish Council's Housing Needs Survey. He asked that these points be considered by the Parish Council in its response to the outline application.

One member of the public referred to the Parish Council's Code of Conduct and the requirement for Members to disclose pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests. She expressed concern that the Code does not cater for non-pecuniary interests and disclosure of these interests was at the discretion of Members themselves to declare. She said it was up to the Council to decide what should be included in its own adopted Code which should consider whether interests are pecuniary or non-pecuniary, including bias and pre-determination, and should make it clear when Members need to leave the meeting and not participate in discussions nor voting.

One member of the public gave a quick verbal update on how endeavours to install traffic calming measures at Coed-Y-Go were progressing. Local residents had produced a report which he asked Members to review and asked for them to be placed on the Parish Council website so that they could be seen by members of the public.

Howard Martin, the applicant of the planning application for the proposed residential development off Chapel Lane in Trefonen, referred to comments made by members of the public. He said that it would be a joint development and the ground would not go on the open market and he was in discussions with a developer. Surveys of the site were available to view on Shropshire Council's Planning Portal and information was available on social media. Objections to the proposals were not overwhelming in proportion to the population. He reminded Members to consider very carefully their eligibility to vote on this application.

968 Minutes

The minutes of a Parish Council meeting held on 28 February 2021 were considered for approval. It was PROPOSED, SECONDED and RESOLVED that the minutes be APPROVED and ADOPTED as a true record.

969 Disclosure of Pecuniary Interests

Members were reminded that they are required to leave the room during the discussion and voting on matters in which they have a disclosable pecuniary interest, whether or not the interest is entered in the Register of Members' Interests maintained by the Monitoring Officer.

The following interests were declared:

COUNCILLOR	INTEREST
Peter Richardson	Pecuniary interest, as a close neighbour, concerning agenda item 25, Fairhaven Camp
	Site.
Martin Jones	Non-pecuniary interest with reference to the proposed development at Chapel Lane
	(knows the applicant).
Tracy Rowe	Non-pecuniary interest in planning application at Glentworth Close (neighbour).
Elliot Roberts	Pecuniary interest concerning planning application at Bellan Place (owner of land).
Jones	
Paul Milner	Non-pecuniary interest, as a substitute on the Shropshire Council Northern Planning
	Committee.
John Davies	Non-pecuniary interest with reference to Trefonen Hill (friend).

970 Dispensations

None requested.

971 Declaration of Acceptance of Gifts and Hospitality

None declared.

972 Planning Matters

a) Planning Decisions

The following planning decisions were **NOTED.**

Planning Decision Details	Proposals	
20/04567/FUL	Erection of a single plot exception (SPE) affordable dwelling and garage.	
Proposed affordable dwelling	Permission GRANTED 18 March 2021.	
west of Vine Cottage,	The Parish Council supported this application.	
Middleton Road, Middleton		
21/00431/TPO	Reduce tree back from conservatory, balance crown and crown raising 2/3m in	
11 St Anne's Drive, Morda,	width one Sycamore tree protected by The Council of the Borough of Oswestry	
Oswestry	(Morda House, Morda, Oswestry) TPO 1977.	
	Permission GRANTED 8 March 2021.	
	The Parish Council objected to any works on this tree and wanted it to remain as	
	it was.	

b) Planning Applications

The following planning applications were considered:

Planning Application Details	Proposals
21/00756/FUL Bethania, 9 Glentworth close Morda	Replacement of one ground floor bow window with a flat window and replacement of one ground floor bow window with bay window, including dwarf brick wall and pitch roof to front elevation. It was PROPOSED, SECONDED and AGREED to support.
	Cllr. Tracy Rowe abstained from the vote.
21/00857/HHE 5 Bellan Place, Bellan Lane, Trefonen	Erection of a single storey rear extension to terraced dwelling, dimensions 4.8 meters beyond the rear wall, 2.75 meters maximum height, 2.45 meters high to eaves.
	Cllr. Elliot Roberts Jones left the meeting.
	It was PROPOSED, SECONDED and AGREED to support.
	Cllr. Elliot Roberts Jones returned to the meeting.
21/00910/CPL Trefonen Hill, Trefonen	Application for a Lawful Development Certificate for the proposed erection of a rear extension. To NOTE only.
21/00911/FUL	Erection of roof extension over garage and installation of Cabrio Velux roof
Trefonen Hill, Trefonen	windows. It was PROPOSED, SECONDED and AGREED to support.
	Cllr. John Davies abstained from the vote.
21/01004/OUT Proposed residential development off Chapel Lane,	Outline application (all matters reserved) for the erection of 23 dwellings and the formation of a vehicular access.
Trefonen	Due to a considerable amount of local concern it was PROPOSED , SECONDED and AGREED to object for the following reasons:
	 The proposed site is outside of the current village development boundary. There are no grounds to classify the site as a rural exception where 100% rural homes would be required for a village like Trefonen, which is still classified as countryside and therefore, the proposed development would not conform with the current Local Plan. Any new development would increase the volume of traffic onto an already busy road at peak times thus creating further danger to school children crossing the road. The primary school is already full, and the pre-school nursery has a waiting list. There are only 2 schools in the parish and local people are having to look outside of the parish for school places.

	 There have been problems with flooding this year, especially adjacent to the proposed site. There is local concern about the ecology of the site, including previous mining of coal and clay and its associated risks. Coal mining reports may be required as the site is already defined as high risk. The proposed site is highly visible, and any new development would be intrusive and have a dramatic effect on the appearance of the village, especially as it currently has views to Offa's Dyke. Any new development will put additional strain on the present
	infrastructure, and the adequacy of local amenities should be considered before any further development is allowed. The following Councillors abstained from the vote: Martin Jones, Phil May, Tony
21/01114/FUL	Milner, Tracy Rowe. Erection of single storey extension.
Angel Cwtch, Morton, Oswestry	It was PROPOSED, SECONDED and AGREED to support.
21/01164/FUL Ty Nant Sychtyn, Trefonen	Erection of detached self-contained residential unit as ancillary accommodation to main house, following demolition of former bothy building; erection of workshop/stables with hay loft above.
	It was PROPOSED, SECONDED and AGREED to object until sufficient detail was available about where the development was to take place.
21/01265/FUL Grange Cottage, Morton,	Erection of first floor extension. It was PROPOSED, SECONDED and AGREED to support.
Oswestry	
21/01334/EIA Proposed development at land off Mile End Roundabout	Hybrid Planning Application for: Full planning permission - formation of a 360m spine road; two 3.5m wide foot and cycleways; one 2m wide footpath; one electricity substation; supporting utilities infrastructure; drainage system; landscaping and ancillary works; Outline planning permission - 10 plots to be delivered in four phases, providing: - a hotel (use class C1) up to 30,000sq. ft; - three units providing up to 6,000sq. ft of hospitality and up to 3000sq. ft of services; - five mixed use units providing general industry with ancillary office (B2 & E) providing up to 180,000sq. ft; - one office unit (use class E) providing up to 15,000sq. ft; - one light industrial unit (use class E) providing up to 63,000sq. ft; - two mixed use units providing storage/distribution with ancillary office (B8 & E) providing up to 200,000sq. ft; - the provision of green infrastructure and all ancillary works. It was PROPOSED, SECONDED and AGREED that, due to its late arrival, this should be considered at the next meeting.
21/01423/AGR Graigllwyn Farm, Graig-Llwyn, Trefonen	Storage building for hay, straw and agricultural machinery. For information only.
19/03030/FUL The Elms, Middleton	Application under Section 73A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 for the use of land and buildings for production, storage and sale of biomass fuel and animal bedding (re-submission) (amended description).
	It was PROPOSED, SECONDED and AGREED to object to the late notification and to continue to object on the same grounds as previously stated.

c) Stopping Up Order

The Stopping up of Highways (West Midlands) (No.13) Order 2021 authorising the stopping up of two partwidths of Long Lane, at the site of the former School House Bridge, Oswestry to enable development as permitted by Shropshire Council under reference 19/03372/FUL.

NOTED.

973 Clerk's Report

Members **NOTED** a written report from the Clerk on action taken following decisions made at the last Parish Council meeting.

It was AGREED to pursue the request to the Highways Agency for safety improvements to be made to the traffic lights at Maesbury.

974 Councillor Reports

Cllr. Phil May reported that, even though it had previously been reported to Shropshire Council, the grit bin at Nantmawr had been stuck in front of the notice board for a few weeks thus preventing access to the notice board

It was AGREED that the obstructing grit bin should be reported to Shropshire Council.

975 Shropshire Council

Cllr. Joyce Barrow had nothing to report.

976 Financial Matters

a) Income and Expenditure and Bank Reconciliations

Members considered for approval income and expenditure and bank reconciliations up to 28 February 2021. It was PROPOSED, SECONDED and AGREED that the income and expenditure and bank reconciliations to 28 February 2021 be APPROVED.

b) Payments for March 2021

Members considered for approval payments for March 2021.

It was PROPOSED, SECONDED and AGREED that the following payments for the month of March 2021 be APPROVED.

PAYEE	DESCRIPTION	AMOUNT £
Mark Evans	Bus shelter cleaning	60.00
Colin Turner	Bus shelter cleaning	25.00
Viking	Stationery and stamps	31.86
Silver Marbles	Quarterly website maintenance	36.00
SALC	Councillor training	30.00
HMRC	PAYE/NI	177.95
Sharon Clayton	Salary/expenses/reimbursements	929.05
	TOTA	L 1289.86

c) Virements

It was PROPOSED, SECONDED and AGREED that the following virements be APPROVED:

VIREMENT FROM	£	VIREMENT TO	£
Meeting room hire	50.00	Stationery	50.00
Meeting room hire	15.00	Postage	15.00
Newsletter	400.00	Professional/legal fees	400.00
Councillor training	140.00	Website	140.00
TOTAL	605.00	TOTAL	605.00

977 Risk Assessment

Members considered for approval the annual risk assessment.

It was PROPOSED, SECONDED and AGREED that the annual risk assessment be APPROVED.

978 Road Safety

Members received written reports from local residents at Coed-Y-Go. Shropshire Council had confirmed that the traffic counter would be installed in the new financial year. There had been no meetings due to lockdown. **NOTED**.

Concern was expressed about the 20mph signs outside Morda School which were not very obvious and it was suggested that road markings should be improved.

NOTED.

Members were asked to acknowledge the support of Llanyblodwel Parish Council who were trying to reduce the speed limit at Nantmawr to 30mph.

It was AGREED to write and thank Llanyblodwel Parish Council for their efforts in trying to reduce the speed limit at Nantmawr.

Members were informed that the VAS had been installed in Trefonen and that grant funding for them had been received.

NOTED.

Members were informed that grants were available for traffic calming measures and that further information was available from David Gradwell, the Area Traffic Engineer at Shropshire Council.

It was suggested that VAS should be installed in Morda, especially outside the school.

979 Village Halls

a) Members received information and reports concerning Morda and Sweeney Village Hall.

It was PROPOSED, SECONDED and AGREED that:

- Clarification should be sought as to whether a parish councillor/trustee can be a member of the Management Committee.
- The Management Committee of Morda and Sweeney Village Hall should be asked for details of who had carried out their audit.
- b) Members considered how to respond to Lanyon Bowdler concerning the titles of Trefonen Village Hall and Morda and Sweeney Village Hall.

It was PROPOSED, SECONDED and AGREED that this matter be deferred to a future meeting until more information had been provided.

980 Place Plan

Members received an updated Place Plan that included all comments from Members.

It was PROPOSED, SECONDED and AGREED that:

- o The updated Place Plan be submitted to Shropshire Council.
- The Parish Council would support improvements to ground floor renovations at a cost of £6,000 and a 1st floor renovation at a cost of £4,000 at Morda C of E Primary School.

At this point in the meeting, it was PROPOSED, SECONDED and AGREED to suspend Standing Order number 3(x) to enable the meeting to exceed more than 2 hours.

Cllr. Phil May left at this point in the meeting.

981 Planning Enforcement

Concern was expressed that planning breaches were not being enforced. For example, The Elms had been operating for over 12 months without proper planning permission and the Black Country Metal Works had also been operating without full permission. The Enforcement Officers were not enforcing planning regulations. It was PROPOSED, SECONDED and AGREED the Parish Council should write to planning enforcement and express concerns about their failure to enforce planning regulations within the parish and that the reasons why should be explained.

982 The Elms

There was no further discussion as this had been covered earlier in the meeting.

983 Mud on the Road

Members received information from Shropshire Council's Agriculture Partnership concerning mud on the road and other issues created by agricultural vehicles.

NOTED.

984 Flood Plain at Morda Village Hall

The Clerk informed Members that a response had been received from the Environment Agency which would be included for discussion at the next meeting.

It was PROPOSED, SECONDED and AGREED that this should be discussed further at the next meeting.

985 Litter Picking

Members considered for approval the provision of litter picking equipment for volunteer litter picking groups. It was PROPOSED, SECONDED and AGREED that a recognised body would need to be found/established before any equipment could be purchased by the Parish Council.

It was also NOTED that Shropshire Council would provide litter picking equipment, free of charge, to recognised groups.

986 Dog Bins

Members considered the installation of dog litter bins in Morda.

It was PROPOSED, SECONDED and AGREED that:

- Shropshire Council should be asked to provide 2 dog litter bins, one near to Hope House and one near to Nant-Y-Caws in Morda, one near to the Navigation Inn and one near to Spiggots Bridge along the Montgomery Canal. It was further agreed there should also be more signage to prevent dog litter.
- The Clerk should write to the local press and ask them to publish how offenders leaving dog litter can be reported to Shropshire Council.

987 Declaration of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs)

Members considered concerns from a member of the public about the declaration of pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests and whether Members knew when to declare them. There was also concern about keeping DPIs up to date.

It was PROPOSED, SECONDED and AGREED that Councillors should keep their DPIs up to date.

988 Fairhaven Camp Site

Having declared an interest Cllr. Peter Richardson left the meeting.

Members received a response from Natural England concerning the Parish Council's complaint about activities at Fairhaven Camp Site. The response outlined the powers that could be used to regulate the camp site's activities. In response to several complaints Natural England had issued Freedom Camping Club (FCC) with a formal warning letter outlining the steps required by Natural England for FCC to remedy the situation. Members were informed that other complaints had been made about Freedom Camping Club in other areas. It was PROPOSED, SECONDED and AGREED that:

- Because there had been complaints about FCC at other campsites the Parish Council should ask
 Natural England to escalate its complaint to Stage 3.
- Owen Patterson MP should be asked for further support concerning this issue.

Cllr. Peter Richardson returned to the meeting.

989 Boundary Review

Members received information from Oswestry Town Council outlining it response to the proposed boundary review.

It was PROPOSED, SECONDED and AGREED that the parish boundary should remain the same as was at present.

990 Consultation

No consultation had been received.

991 Annual Parish Meeting

Members considered for approval items for inclusion on the agenda for the forthcoming Annual Parish Meeting that would take place by Zoom on Tuesday 20 April 2021.

It was PROPOSED, SECONDED and AGREED that invitations to attend and speak should be sent to the following:

- Head Teachers from Morda C of E Primary School to speak about future plans for the school.
- o The local police
- The PCC to speak about road safety.
- o Cambrian Heritage Railways to discuss future plans.
- o Shropshire Union Canal Society to discuss restoration plans for the Montgomery Canal.

992 Correspondence

Members received the following:

- a) SALC information bulletin and NALC information.
- b) Information about training events for councillors.
- c) Information about forthcoming local elections.
- d) Information about the Public Sector Deposit Fund.
- e) A thank you for the grant awarded to Rhydycroesau Village Hall towards maintenance costs of the defibrillator.
- f) Report concerning the projected environmental impact caused by intensive dairy farming at Trefarclawdd Farm.
- g) Information and plans in relation to 20 affordable homes at Weston Road, Morda.

NOTED.

993 Agenda Items for Next Meeting

It was **AGREED** that the following matters should be discussed at the next Parish Council meeting:

- o Flooding in Morda (Cllr. Les Maguire)
- Recycling bins (Cllr. Martin Jones)
- Recording of meetings (Cllr. Martin Jones)
- o Trefarclawdd Farm and its impact on local residents
- Mud on the road (Cllr. Tony Milner)

994 Date of Next Meeting

It was NOTED that the next meeting would take place by Zoom video on Tuesday 27 April 2021.

Public Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960

Pursuant to Section 1(2) of the above Act it was **PROPOSED**, **SECONDED** and **RESOLVED** that due to the confidential nature of the business to be transacted the public and press should not be present.

995 Planning Enforcement

There were no planning enforcement notices.

The meeting closed at 22:00.

Signed: Chairman	Date: